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Mr. Kevin J. Kinsella is the Founder and Managing Director at Avalon Ventures, LLC. 
He founded the firm in March 1983. He has specialized in the formation, financing 
and development of more than 125 early-stage companies, including: Athena 
Neurosciences Onyx Pharmaceuticals, Sequana, Vertex Pharmaceuticals, Synaptics, 
Vocera Communications, Amira Pharmaceuticals, JNANA, and Juliet Marine 
Systems. Mr. Kinsella was the founding chairman of Athena Neurosciences, Aurora 
Biosciences, Landmark Graphics, NeoRx, Onyx Pharmaceuticals, Synaptics, Vertex 
Pharmaceuticals, X-Ceptor and Sequana Therapeutics.  

Prior to founding Avalon, Mr. Kinsella worked for Solar Turbines International 
(Caterpillar Tractor), where he was in charge of all international joint ventures, 
barter and counter-trade. Previously, he was a nutrition advisor to the Peruvian 
government where he became a world expert in the cultivation and marketing of 
quinoa. He ran a technology exchange program between the U.S. and Latin America 
based in Mexico City, and taught algebra at the American High School in Beirut, 
Lebanon. He was also a guest op-ed columnist for the Boston Herald American. 

Mr. Kinsella is a graduate of the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (“MIT”) with 
a Bachelor of Science degree in management, with minors in electrical engineering 
and political science. He holds a Master of Arts degree in international relations 
from the Johns Hopkins School of Advanced International Studies (“SAIS”) and 
conducted post-graduate work in political economy on a Rotary International 
Fellowship at the University of Stockholm, Sweden. He is a member of the 
Circumnavigators Club, an elite group of explorers who have gone around the world 
in a continuous trip using multiple modes of transport. 

Mr. Kinsella is a Life Sustaining Fellow at MIT and a member of the Dean’s Advisory 
Council at SAIS. He won the Tony Award for producing the mega-hit Broadway 
musical, Jersey Boys, and partnered with Rhino Records (Time Warner) in producing 



the Grammy Award-winning Jersey Boys Original Broadway Cast Recording, which 
has gone Double Platinum (selling over 2 million copies). In 2012, Mr. Kinsella also 
received a second Tony nomination for Best Revival of a Musical for Jesus Christ 
Superstar. 

Mr. Kinsella is a member of the Board of Directors of JNANA and Juliet Marine 
Systems. He is a member of the Council on Foreign Relations. Kinsella Estates 
Winery (Healdsburg, California), produces the highest rated premium Dry Creek 
Valley cabernet sauvignon, receiving 96 and 95 point ratings from The Wine 
Advocate and Wine Spectator. His collection of California Plein Air art, housed at 
the Kinsella Library in La Jolla, is among the best in the world. 

Source: www.avalon-ventures.com
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Jones: Let's start at the beginning. Where were you born? 1 

Kinsella: Oh God, we're not going back that far, are we? 2 

Jones:  Yes, we are, a little bit. 3 

Kinsella:  I was born in New York on December 23rd, 1945. 4 

Jones: Tell me a little bit about your family, growing up. 5 

Kinsella: My father was an actor. He started in vaudeville, and then was in radio, 6 

television, cinema, and on Broadway. My mother was quite a prominent model in 7 

New York City, which is how they met. We lived in the suburbs. My sister and I were 8 

born in the city and then we moved out to the suburbs. 9 

Jones:  Were you encouraged to excel at school? 10 

Kinsella: Yes, it was important. We went to Catholic schools growing up. It was 11 

spare the rod and spoil the child, that kind of thing. Academic excellence, and 12 

getting good grades were always part of the family culture I grew up with.  13 

Jones:  Did you take to it personally? 14 

Kinsella: I did. I was a successful student and I enjoyed learning, so it was fine. 15 

Some people don't take to it, it's like mixing oil and water, but for me it was quite 16 

interesting. I skipped kindergarten and went straight to first grade and kept going 17 

from there. I was a little bit young for my class. 18 
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Jones:  Did you have an affinity for particular subjects? 19 

Kinsella: Early on I found myself particularly adept at mathematics and that tilted 20 

me toward science and technology, rather than the humanities, although I loved 21 

reading. We would go to the library in the summer and I would take six books out 22 

and read them and bring them back and get six more, that kind of thing. I enjoyed 23 

reading from an early age. 24 

Jones:  Did your father's career in show business, have any influence on you? 25 

You returned to it as a producer. 26 

Kinsella: Not really. My parents divorced when I was young, and my mother 27 

remarried an attorney. So my father and the show business influence in my life 28 

became somewhat more remote. My sister and I would see him half a dozen times a 29 

year, but he wasn't a presence in the house anymore. He wasn’t a role model in that 30 

sense.  31 

Jones: You became involved in athletics. 32 

Kinsella: Yes, I did. I played football, baseball, and basketball, the traditional 33 

sports when I was young. And then as you grow older you need to specialize. It 34 

narrows down when you get to high school. I played only basketball in high school. 35 

And then I played basketball in college. That was my college sport, although I rowed 36 

crew my freshman year. But I didn't like going out on the Charles River in March, 37 

when your gloved hands would freeze to the oars. That wasn't fun. Basketball is 38 

played in a nice, warm gym, so I liked that.  39 

The turning point came in the summer of '66 when I got to go on a trip to Europe 40 

with the MIT basketball team. I think there were eight or nine of us on the trip. 41 

There were eleven people in all, including the coach and an assistant who was there 42 

to keep the coach in good humor. He was in charge of finding the liquor in town. 43 

Jones:  During high school, were you looking ahead and thinking about college? 44 

Had you set your sights on MIT? 45 

Kinsella: Yes, I did. I became enamored of MIT. It had a great reputation and 46 

seemed to fit the bill. It was the only college I applied to. I got in early – even though 47 

they didn't have a formal early admissions program – so I never went through the 48 
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angst that many kids do in April when they’re waiting to find out whether they got 49 

into their school of choice. 50 

Jones:  Did you have teachers in high school or earlier who influenced you? 51 

Kinsella: Yes, some science and math teachers were fairly influential, but not 52 

social studies teachers – that never seemed to work out. I enjoyed the crispness of 53 

the hard sciences, and being able to identify the right answer as opposed to giving 54 

opinions in essays. 55 

Jones:  Did you have a plan regarding what you would do at MIT, or did you 56 

show up and sample the offerings? 57 

Kinsella: Originally, I was going to be an aeronautical engineer. 58 

Jones:  Why did you want to do that? 59 

Kinsella: I just liked the idea of flying machines, stuff like that. But when I got 60 

there and started taking the basic engineering courses for aero it just seemed to be 61 

boring. So I gravitated away from that toward electrical engineering, and also 62 

political science. 63 

Jones:  So electrical engineering wasn't boring for you? 64 

Kinsella: No. It employs the best bits of math and science together in a way that's 65 

pretty straightforward. So I enjoy that. [Off mic conversation]. 66 

Jones:  At some point, then, you switched to business, right? 67 

Kinsella: I did. That was when I was a junior at MIT. I took a class from Professor, 68 

Jay W. Forrester, who originally discovered or developed what is called random 69 

access memory. About the time I was a freshman, I think, was when MIT filed a 70 

successful lawsuit against IBM for violating Forrester’s patents. IBM lost, and there 71 

was a huge judgment. I think the typical division of the proceeds of a university 72 

invention is: a third go to the inventor, a third go to the institution, and a third go to 73 

his lab. So Jay got a third of the settlement, his lab got a third, and MIT got a third. 74 

MIT made out fine. 75 

But Jay was migrating away from physics and computers to the whole sense of 76 

management of organizations and institutions. We were his disciples in each class at 77 
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MIT’s Sloan School. [The Forrester group at Sloan] was called the Undergraduate 78 

Systems program, and we learned at his elbow, so to speak. We were in that program 79 

for two years. There were only ten of us in each class. It was very intimate, very 80 

focused. There was a great selection of other students; they were really first rate. It 81 

was a big feeding ground for intellectual ferment, back in those days. That's why my 82 

official degree from MIT is from the management school. 83 

Jones: So it was [Forrester’s] idea that once you have [an understanding of the 84 

relationships among the elements of a complex system, one can analyze out into the 85 

future how the system will respond to perturbations – which is very often not 86 

intuitive?] 87 

Kinsella: Yes. It had to do with these computer programs and ways of looking at 88 

problems that he developed. In many respects he was codifying self-fulfilling 89 

prophecies and vicious cycles and that sort of thing. And that was interesting just in 90 

and of itself to see how he did that. And it was applicable across a broad range of 91 

other fields, and had a lot to do with behavioral economics and so forth.  [Off mic 92 

conversation] 93 

Jones:  During this period, Route 128 has gone like gangbusters, right? Did that 94 

make any impression? 95 

Kinsella: Yes. When I was an undergraduate I had a – what did you call it back in 96 

those days?  97 

Jones:  An internship? 98 

Kinsella: No, it wasn't an internship; it was some other name. We'd spend time 99 

with one of the scientific labs in and around Cambridge, and I spent some time with 100 

Draper Laboratories, which was named after Charles Stark Draper, who was involved 101 

in developing many if not most of the original inertial guidance systems for our 102 

space program. 103 

Jones:  So you found all of this stimulating, I assume? 104 

Kinsella: I did. 105 

Jones:  Then there's this political science piece; how does that fit in? 106 
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Kinsella: Because I became politically aware during that period of time.  I took a 107 

couple of courses by Noam Chomsky and Louis Kampf – because Chomsky was one 108 

of the early advocates against the war in Vietnam. 109 

Jones:  And when you say politically aware, I mean Noam Chomsky, that's 110 

pretty radical politics. How far to the left did you go? 111 

Kinsella: It wasn't that radical, really, at the time. He was a very calm and incisive 112 

intellectual, so he wasn't a flag waver [crosstalk]. 113 

Jones:  Wasn't a flag burner, right. 114 

Kinsella: That's right. You sit and listen to his ideas, which developed into his 115 

political opposition to a variety of things, you know, it's fairly interesting. Louis 116 

Kampf was the other guy, who taught this course called Intellectuals and Social 117 

Change, which I found to be quite interesting. 118 

And then I went with some colleagues over to Harvard Business School to see what 119 

members of the Class of '66 were doing.  This is the fall, maybe, of my senior year 120 

and we're trying to figure out what to do come June.  I knew many of the class before 121 

us [MIT ‘66] because there was an Undergraduate Systems program class that year 122 

and we were integrated through the courses we were taking within the USP 123 

program.  And we got to be personal friends even though they were one year more 124 

advanced. Half a dozen of them were at Harvard. So I asked, "All right, what's it like 125 

there?" 126 

So I went over and sat in some classes, [laughter] I found it hideously boring. But 127 

they were working on it and I'm like, "Oh my God.  I can't do this."  At the same 128 

time, because the coming of age of political consciousness during the Vietnam War, 129 

I became aware of grand political movements, things like that.  And I decided I 130 

wanted to kick around and do that.   131 

So I decided to apply for graduate school, instead of doing something in 132 

management or engineering, to break with that.  I applied to the School of Advanced 133 

International Studies at Johns Hopkins.  [Xerox] actually had a fellowship available 134 

for someone who came out of a technical background, to bring a technical person 135 

into the world of diplomacy. That's what I had, and so I qualified. It was a nice 136 

scholarship for two years.  137 
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Jones: Well, that's interesting that they had this fellowship. Is that the notion 138 

that the future is science and engineering is going to be increasingly part of the 139 

political sphere? 140 

Kinsella: That's a level of abstraction I never got to in my own thinking. I just felt 141 

the political and international relations aspect of things were interesting so I decided 142 

to pursue that. And so I got my master's degree in two years. 143 

Jones:  How did you like that program? What did you study there? 144 

Kinsella: My concentration was in international economics. 145 

Jones:  What brand of economics? 146 

Kinsella: Well it was really sort of the big issue of – no one had heard of supply 147 

side economics at the time so it was just really market forces and supply and 148 

demand and foreign currency exchange, the dynamism of world markets. 149 

In 1969 I graduated. You may remember in 1971 we went off the gold [standard] for 150 

good. Connelly was the treasury secretary under Nixon. 151 

Jones:  So he was from Johns Hopkins? 152 

Kinsella: No, he wasn’t. I'm just saying that I was conscious of all of this going on. 153 

I was conscious of a lot of things since SAIS hosted a lot of speakers because they 154 

were in Washington which is the diplomatic host for many nations. You would be 155 

exposed to things and try on different viewpoints that you would not have otherwise 156 

thought about. 157 

Jones:  Well you come to the end of those two years and then you are back in 158 

the same place, right? You have another decision to make. 159 

Kinsella: Right. I had received a Rotary International fellowship to study overseas 160 

in Sweden. I graduated with my master's in May, and this didn’t start until the 161 

following September. So there's this big 15-month hiatus. And I thought it was a cool 162 

opportunity not to get a regular job – because how far could you go in 15 months? 163 

The employer would be irritated that I would be leaving from the get-go. 164 

I decided to do something interesting and I got a job teaching algebra at the 165 

American High School in Beirut, Lebanon.  166 
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Jones:  That's interesting. What motivated that? Lebanon at that time –after the 167 

'67 war– is a pretty dicey area at that time. 168 

Kinsella: It got even dicier after '75, when their own civil war broke out. 169 

[Lebanon] was a lovely place after the Six Day War and before they decided to seek 170 

another path, so to speak. 171 

Jones:  Well, for you is this part sightseeing? 172 

Kinsella: Yes, living in the Middle East, traveling all over the Middle East, you 173 

know, was something on the bucket list.  174 

Jones:  Where did you go? 175 

Kinsella: Well, Lebanon, Syria, Israel. I wanted to go to Iraq but I never did. I wish 176 

I had. That was long before Saddam Hussein, of course. And I went over to Egypt, 177 

during Christmas, explored a bit of the Sinai and went up the Nile and all that. It was 178 

a busy time of hopping around the Middle East. 179 

Jones:  What were your impressions of that part of the world? 180 

Kinsella: Backward, certainly, even if they had a lot of money they were 181 

backwards politically. They were fanatical to a certain extent – but this was long 182 

before jihadism had evolved. And you know, I formed a certain sense of sympathy 183 

with the Palestinians who populated the refugee camps in Lebanon. Because of the 184 

conflict they had been driven out of their homes and now were trying to get back 185 

and reclaim them. 186 

Jones:  Right. So you did that for something like 15 months? 187 

Kinsella: Probably something like that, because I had language study classes in 188 

advance. 189 

Jones:  Did you approach fluency or did enough to get by? 190 

Kinsella: In Swedish. 191 

Jones:  Oh, you were studying Swedish? Yes. Swedish, that's a difficult language. 192 

Kinsella: No, it's easy actually. 193 
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Jones:  Is it? Sounds hard. 194 

Kinsella: Well it's not really. For example, let's conjugate "to be" in the present 195 

tense. 196 

Jones:  In English it's complicated, right. 197 

Kinsella: Yes, but in Swedish it's easy. It's like saying, "I be", "You be," He be", as 198 

opposed to, "I am," "You are," "They are". So it's actually quite easy grammatically. I 199 

learned that. And I actually served as a translator for the guy who was the editor of a 200 

newspaper called Dagens Nyheter, which means "The Day's News." His name was 201 

Olof Lagercrantz. So I translated a book or two of his from Swedish to English. 202 

Jones:  You must have developed real fluency. 203 

Kinsella: I did, but it's far easier to do that than it would be to translate 204 

something from English into Swedish and have it completely grammatically and au 205 

courant with the vernacular expressions that people have. It was quite 206 

straightforward to go the other way –  207 

Jones:  The course of study there, was this in Swedish or English? 208 

Kinsella: No, the classes were in Swedish. So I just had to learn. 209 

Jones:  You did okay with that? 210 

Kinsella: Yes. 211 

Jones:  Again, this was, political economy? 212 

Kinsella: Right. And that's the study – in Swedish it’s called statskunskap, or the 213 

study of the state. Kunskap is the study of or science of, or something, and stat is the 214 

state, so statskunskap. So that's what I studied. It was a non-degree program. And 215 

then I finished that up and then I moved back to the States for – oh boy, probably 216 

nine months or less, looking to see what I would be able to do. It was a recession 217 

then, so I couldn't find any really super interesting opportunities. But I had the 218 

travel bug and there was an opportunity that opened up to run the Latin American 219 

headquarters of the outfit based at Tufts University call the Latin American Teaching 220 

Fellowship program. 221 
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Jones:  Prior to this were you doing any kind of really long-range thinking? 222 

Kinsella: Not really. 223 

Jones:  At Tufts they had a Latin American program? 224 

Kinsella: It was USAID [United States Agency for International Development] a 225 

separate organization that was run, in effect, off campus, but it had an affiliation 226 

with Tufts, with the Fletcher School. We had to be responsible for our own finances, 227 

and it was very entrepreneurial. I was sent to Mexico City to open up the office there. 228 

And so I had to not only arrange for these fellowships for Americans coming down to 229 

teach in universities in Mexico, but I also had to figure out how to finance them. So I 230 

did it in one of two ways: one, outright eleemosynary [charitable] contributions 231 

particularly from the multinational corporations—US corporations that had 232 

significant operations in Mexico. So I raised money from them on an eleemosynary 233 

basis. A lot of them wanted technical people to work for them on an internship basis, 234 

and they would pay $600, $800, $1,000 a month– I mean not much by today's 235 

standards but it wasn't too mean a stipend back then. 236 

I would arrange these things that, "Oh, we've got this electrical engineer over here 237 

and he would be great doing that," and we put things together. I think by the time I 238 

left there were more than 30 academics who were doing both this internship work 239 

and teaching at the local university. 240 

Jones:  Was that good training for later when you had to raise money for startup 241 

companies, investing in companies? 242 

Kinsella: Oh yes. It's always good training. 243 

Jones:  You did that for how long? 244 

Kinsella: In Mexico City, I was there for two years. 245 

Jones:  Then you end up in Peru at some point? 246 

Kinsella: Yes, after that I became an advisor to the Peruvian government through 247 

the Agency for International Development [USAID] on, of all things, national 248 

nutrition planning. So I became, in effect, the first world's expert on quinoa, which is 249 

completely weird. What's funny now is back then you couldn't even give it away, 250 
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right? And I was designing a support program for the Altiplano in Peru. Quinoa is 251 

used in pastas and breads or whatever. You can do that because you can substitute 252 

ten percent of quinoa flour to wheat flour without taste detection. Once it gets 253 

above that then it tastes a little odd. So for pastas, breads and so forth you can do 254 

that, just less than ten percent and you're good to go.  255 

Jones:  Yes, how did you become the person for that position? 256 

Kinsella: Just one of those things that became available because they needed a 257 

person. There was a consulting organization called TransCentury Corporation for 258 

which I directly worked and they had a contract with USAID. So there were a variety 259 

of roles to fill and one of them was figuring out how to harness this crop that grew in 260 

the Altiplano. It's quite prized by the locals but it was finicky. You know, the plants 261 

that are growing out of the lichen up near the tree line are very fragile, as things in 262 

that environment can be – they never figured that into the comp package, I suppose. 263 

Anyway, it was fun. 264 

Jones:  So you're having a good time, moving around and getting involved in 265 

interesting projects. But then we come to 1975 – what happens after you conclude 266 

this? You're in Peru and you advise them and set something up? 267 

Kinsella: Right. So then I made a recommendation to my authorities at the 268 

embassy who basically were the USAID people there. It was a three-part program 269 

that would save 10 percent of the import bill for wheat because it's [import] 270 

substitution. It would raise the dietary protein in the diet of poor people in Peru 271 

because quinoa is 17 percent protein by weight. The highest form of any type of 272 

wheat protein is only 7 percent. So there's a huge difference. 273 

So we could raise the consumption of protein by the poor people. It also started to 274 

form the basis of an agricultural support program where you have guaranteed sales 275 

to the local people through some community intermediary, or even a government 276 

organization. So there were great reasons to do this. Except my first lesson about 277 

power politics, so to speak, was that this was in everyone's interest except the guy 278 

who had the license to import the wheat, because substituting or cutting down his 279 

wheat imports by ten percent was not his idea of a good time. 280 

I didn't really interfere. They just said, "Oh, thank you very much," and put it in the 281 

circular file. So much for that. But it was a great learning experience, and who knew 282 
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that years later I could go out to dinner by telling people I was the first world's 283 

expert on quinoa production.  284 

Now everybody's paranoid about gluten free and so forth. And today quinoa is so 285 

expensive that the people down there can't afford to eat it—kind of what happened 286 

to corn, right, because of the biofuels. Crazy. 287 

Jones:  So that didn't go anywhere, didn't get implemented. 288 

Kinsella: No. [Not right away.] 289 

Jones:  Okay, it's time to do something else? What came next? 290 

Kinsella: Let's see, so we're back in '75. MIT was about to announce a major 291 

capital campaign to raise $225 million to add to the endowment, which in today's 292 

dollars seems a rather paltry capital campaign, right, you wouldn't even do a capital 293 

campaign unless [the goal] was north of a billion dollars. MIT was about to initiate 294 

one. And, because I was an alumnus and I was pretty well-known because I was a big 295 

man on campus back then, they asked me to head up the fundraising in the western 296 

part of the United States. That was a great opportunity because, as I described, it was 297 

Aspen and west was my territory. So it was a great opportunity to travel from my 298 

base in Cambridge and to put together the fundraising [in the western states]. 299 

Jones:  You hadn't spent much time in the West before? 300 

Kinsella: No, I'd been – let's see, in the summer of '70 I flew into northern 301 

California and then got a car and drove it across the country. From arrival to 302 

departure, it was a matter of five days. 303 

Jones:  So there's still a bit of travel aspect in this, right? 304 

Kinsella: Even back then? 305 

Jones:  Yes, for you to take this position and go around asking for money? 306 

Kinsella: Oh yes, I had to get out and press the flesh with all these wealthy alumni 307 

and so forth who were, for the most part, in the western part of the US. 308 

Jones: So you were successful with this? 309 
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Kinsella: Yes, my group raised $48 million in the course of the campaign. And I 310 

met a lot of people who were in the venture capital business who were MIT 311 

graduates. So Tom Perkins of Kleiner Perkins and Burgess Jamieson at – it's now 312 

called the Sigma Group or I think TVI, Technology Venture Investors was its prior 313 

name. 314 

Jones: You talked to them about their businesses? 315 

Kinsella: Yes. I thought to myself, "This is fascinating, this venture capital 316 

business. All I need is a little capital." Anyway, with that sort of implanted in my 317 

brain, I ended up starting two companies, one in Houston and the other in San 318 

Diego. 319 

Jones:  Well where did the money come from? 320 

Kinsella: It was founder's stock, was walking around money, if you will. So I 321 

created the company, I took a share of founder's stock for myself. 322 

Jones:  What were the companies? 323 

Kinsella: Spectragraphics, which is here in San Diego, and Landmark Graphics 324 

Corporation in Houston. 325 

Jones:  How did you decide where you're putting them – San Diego, Houston– 326 

why San Diego? Why Houston? 327 

Kinsella: Well, San Diego because I lived there, and Houston because it was more 328 

specifically an application of the first program that we had done with 329 

Spectragraphics that was specialized for the oil patch. 330 

Jones:  So this is Landmark Graphics? 331 

Kinsella:  That's right.  332 

Jones:  Well let's back up just a little bit – you lived here in San Diego? How did 333 

that come about?  334 

Kinsella: Well, when I decided to leave Boston – because Boston is really too 335 

parochial and you always get the sense anyone you're dealing with there is  trying to 336 

peek inside your pocket to see if you have your return train ticket to New York 337 
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because they're very paranoid and xenophobic. I got tired of that and decided to 338 

move out to the West Coast. I had some relatives, an aunt and uncle who lived in La 339 

Jolla. I'd been here in 1970; it was a really neat sort of area. They provided an anchor 340 

where I could put up for a couple weeks with no hassle, so that was great. Then I 341 

found an apartment and moved in. 342 

Jones: And Spectragraphics was the San Diego company? What did it do? 343 

Kinsella: Spectragraphics made a high-resolution color monitor that operated 344 

with IBM's equipment for CAD-CAM. 345 

Jones: Where did that technology come from? 346 

Kinsella: It came from the internal group that we had assembled from other MIT 347 

graduates to found the company. 348 

Jones: So you had the idea: "I want to start a company," then you went back to 349 

MIT looking for people? 350 

Kinsella: Well they were really MIT people I'd met locally, and I identified this 351 

opportunity, it sounded really good and we decided to exploit it. 352 

Jones: So you are an entrepreneur at this point? 353 

Kinsella: By default, yes. 354 

Jones: And how involved were you in running these companies?  355 

Kinsella: Not very involved. Once I got started and we had a CEO I wouldn’t stick 356 

my nose in. I enjoyed starting the companies; I didn't necessarily want to run them. 357 

And the second one would be impossible to run since it was in Houston anyway. It's 358 

called Landmark Graphics Corporation and it went public and was acquired by 359 

Halliburton, Dick Cheney's company, which was acquired by someone else.  360 

Jones: So what was your idea, if you go back to that time and looking ahead, 361 

"What's my plan?" To keep starting companies? 362 

Kinsella: I liked it. It appealed to my intellectual curiosity and it was just enough 363 

dilettantism involved that it wasn't too stressful, and they didn't have other people 364 

who were willing to do it; so a match made in heaven.  365 
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Jones: So this is you making yourself into a venture capitalist but it is West 366 

Coast style, very hands on kind of approach? 367 

Kinsella: Well to the extent of how we got famous at Avalon, it is actually creating 368 

companies from scratch: figuring out, what's the story line; what's going to happen 369 

here? And then lining up with the people behind the scenes and so forth. So it was 370 

enjoyable starting the companies, which has been the Avalon brand and how we do 371 

things here. I've basically always done that as opposed to trying to fit my ambitions 372 

into some other company that got started by strangers. 373 

Jones: So '81-'82, this period is Spectragraphics and Landmark Graphics, and 374 

then shortly thereafter comes Avalon? 375 

Kinsella: Right, Avalon started in '83. 376 

Jones: So how did that come about and who was it in the beginning? It was you 377 

and –? 378 

Kinsella: It was just me by myself. What we were able to do, then, was raise 379 

money from individuals, which I don't like to do now because individuals are a pain 380 

in the ass. 381 

Jones: Because they want to know what's going on, and you have a personal 382 

connection with them so they're calling you on the phone? Is that what you mean by 383 

"pain in the ass" or is it raising money? 384 

Kinsella: When you go out and actually start a fund from scratch, getting limited 385 

partners when you don't have a track record is difficult – in particular institutional 386 

investors, who are pains in the ass themselves. So it was better to exploit people I 387 

knew who knew that I had the talent to start the companies and who wanted the 388 

investment opportunities I created by starting these companies.  389 

The first Avalon funds, like I, II, III and IV, were creatures of the limited partners 390 

who were basically the partners of Kleiner Perkins, Sequoia, IVP and so forth. They 391 

would just peel off money from the management fee to fund me. I would start a 392 

company, I would take founder's stock in it, and then they would take it over from 393 

there. So the serious financing money came from them but I had stake in the 394 

founder's stock going forward. And that worked out very nicely in my first fund, 395 
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Avalon One. One company, it turned out to be a 10X, which was a great return, so it 396 

started with $400,000 and it turned into $4 million. 397 

Kinsella: NeoRx was the first biotech I started. 398 

Jones: Is that in Seattle? 399 

Kinsella: Yes. 400 

Jones: So how did you get up to Seattle? Tell me about the first fund, okay? You 401 

raised this money and then you went out and –? 402 

Kinsella: I had to have walking around money. So the first one actually came from 403 

an MIT graduate who was a year ahead of me in the Undergraduate Systems 404 

program. So I knew him pretty well.  405 

Jones: This is John Freeman? 406 

Kinsella: That's John Freeman. He had a colleague, Bill Rosenberg. They met in 407 

the government, working at HUD [Housing and Urban Development], and they 408 

decided to go out on their own and develop Section 8 housing – it’s subsidized 409 

housing. And so they did that. They were successful and made a lot of money, had 410 

great cash flow. They were looking to diversify and I had an opportunity to soak up 411 

some of that cash. They liked the high tech aspect of what I was doing, so my first 412 

limited partners were those guys. Again, that's an MIT connection because John 413 

Freeman was a year ahead of me in the Class of '66. 414 

Jones: Right. And this is a good time to be getting into this stuff, right, the early 415 

Eighties? 416 

Kinsella: Genentech went public in October of 1980, and like wow—it was like 417 

gold rush day: recombinant DNA, and then a year later monoclonal antibodies 418 

became hot, and all of that. So it was a great time to be starting biotech companies, 419 

not only because of the technology per se, but also because there was a retail 420 

investor base that was very interested in these kinds of things, had a great tolerance 421 

for risk. That's completely disappeared, in my opinion, today. You don't find those 422 

kinds of people. I often say that it was really great being in the investing side of the 423 

golden age of venture capital, which I defined as 1980 through 2000. That 20-year 424 

period is when you could make 10 to 100 times your money on the company that you 425 
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started and your molecule, if you even had a molecule, had not yet seen the inside of 426 

a rodent. So those were the days.  427 

Jones: Well it's changed a lot. Is that because the investors have become more 428 

sophisticated, or just more risk averse? 429 

Kinsella: I think all of the above. There was what was called the Gartner curve. 430 

There's initial over-weaning excitement about something, so lots of startups, 431 

ridiculously high valuations, everyone's in on the deal, the sky's the limit. Then 432 

reality sets in, "Well no, it's not going to happen that way," which crashes the 433 

valuation scenario. Then gradually, as they're sorting out things like overpriced real 434 

estate, the enthusiasm starts to rebuild along with a more sober realization of how 435 

one creates value. 436 

And that would go on after the initial euphoria, then the descent into the depths of 437 

despair, and then getting back to the real world and starting to climb out of it. Now 438 

fortunately I was there for that sort of swing, many times. 439 

Jones: Was there this air of excitement? 440 

Kinsella: Oh yes. 441 

Jones: Yes? And this curve you see for different technological platforms, right? 442 

Kinsella: What do you mean? 443 

Jones: Not just biotech. 444 

Kinsella: No it's true, the Gartner curve of wild expectation, crash to Earth and 445 

then crawl back to a market value – that pertains for lots of different technologies, 446 

not just biotech. 447 

Jones: But even within biotech, I mean recombinant DNA, monoclonal 448 

antibodies, genomics, whatever it is, all follow this –  449 

Kinsella: All of those, and we were able to make money in all of them: rational 450 

drug design and combinatorial chemistry, GenPharm made a lot of money –  451 

Jones: Transgenics? 452 
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Kinsella: Yes, Transgenics, mouse models and so forth. It was fun being around 453 

and being a creative force in the platform companies at the time. But as people have 454 

gotten more sophisticated, starting a platform company has become a lot more 455 

difficult. Costs more money and you've got to figure out what's your exit strategy and 456 

all of that, stuff that we just kind of rope-a-doped along back in the day. Fortunately 457 

we were right enough times to make it easy enough to come back.  458 

Jones: Well not everybody was – there were a few people that were right 459 

enough times to carry it along. You didn't have a background in biology but you 460 

educated yourself pretty quickly? 461 

Kinsella: Yes. 462 

Jones: You definitely had a sense – you weren't doing exclusively biotech? 463 

Kinsella: No, I was doing lots of different things. It's interesting because I've 464 

gotten a reputation as being a health care only investor and that's never been true.  465 

There are always opportunities in biotech and tech; I was always trying to figure out 466 

what's the scarce resource. What should I be doing that everyone else can't do?  467 

And it became quite clear early on from the tech standpoint that everyone in the 468 

Valley understood RAM and bits and computer chips and all the rest of that. So to 469 

distinguish yourself you have really got to do something else, and I found that there 470 

wasn't a great sophistication about biotechnology, particularly as you got into more 471 

complex aspects of it. So that's what I did for a number of years, and that was great. 472 

Jones: Well how did you evaluate companies? First, is NeoRx – how did you get 473 

hooked up with those folks, find out about them? And then how did you evaluate? 474 

Kinsella: There was this Russian scientist at the NIH named Dorfman and he told 475 

me about these people – there were quite a few of them, actually – not in the 476 

hundreds, but there were a number of them.  They were all at the cutting edge of the 477 

NCI in Frederick, Maryland. We ended up recruiting 13 of those people. So on the 478 

day the moving trucks came to Frederick –  479 

Jones: You moved them from Washington to Seattle? 480 

Kinsella: Yes, from one Washington to the other Washington. And the moving 481 

vans would go down the street, move one group and then the next and then the 482 
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next. And so they trucked them all out to Seattle. I think 13 employees were moved 483 

that way. I think the total hire was 18 people that we actually hired out of the NCI. 484 

Jones: Well the obvious question is why not do it in Washington, in DC? 485 

Kinsella: Because the CEO of the company lived in Seattle and wanted the 486 

company to be there. I preferred to be in Seattle because I'm West Coast tolerant, so 487 

that was easy. 488 

Jones: Who was the CEO? 489 

Kinsella: Bob Abbott. He's gone on serially to do some things. I think he may be 490 

retired now, but every once in a while I plug-in and catch up and there'll always be 491 

some new biotech deal that he'd be into. 492 

Jones: So the first fund $400,000, NeoRx is a big hit, 10X – any other notable 493 

successes? 494 

Kinsella: ANSA Software, which was acquired by Borland, was a nice score; and 495 

Network Switching Systems, which was one of the companies that was exploiting the 496 

breakup of AT&T. In the old days if you had to plug anything in to the telephone 497 

line, it had to be manufactured by Western Electric, which was the AT&T 498 

manufacturing brand. Well, when the government broke up the AT&T monopoly 499 

and said that, "Well no, it doesn't have to be an integrated chain, and the fact that 500 

you're going to plug something into it from a third party doesn't necessarily mean 501 

lines are going to blow up or anything like that. 502 

So once that happened, it just opened up an explosion of possibilities of things that 503 

you could do. And so hardware became more sophisticated, software just exploded. 504 

Jones: Did you see that coming? 505 

Kinsella: Yes. Whenever there's vast regulatory change that can mean great 506 

business opportunities. Just to make an obvious statement: if AT&T were still 507 

running the telephone industry, there wouldn't be an iPhone. I can guarantee you 508 

that [laughing]. It would be a little phone like this – it would have a cradle on it…So 509 

it was great for innovation. 510 

Jones: Where were those companies located, in California? 511 
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Kinsella: Network Switching Systems was in the Bay Area and NeoRx was in Seattle. 512 

And ANSA was in Mountain View. 513 

Jones: So those are three successes and you're making a name for yourself and 514 

people are much more willing to take a chance with you, right? 515 

Kinsella: Yes. So then in the next fund, the first two guys that backed me, one of 516 

them was a MIT colleague of mine. We added actually the first – let's see, or was it 517 

the second venture fund? I think they were the sole first backers then in Avalon II. In 518 

Avalon II we added two venture funds and then in Avalon III and IV we brought in 519 

Kleiner Perkins and Sequoia Capital and IVP and TVI and brand name firms. 520 

By the end of Avalon IV – and Larry Bock had joined I think for Avalon IV – right 521 

and then he was there, obviously, for V. Up and through Avalon IV, we did 522 

everything tech—biotech or high tech or whatever. When Larry joined from another 523 

venture fund called Fairfield Venture Partners, we set about preparing to go out and 524 

raise Avalon V, which would not be a feeder fund. Up to then, I suppose by 525 

definition, we were a feeder fund, creating opportunities for the larger venture 526 

capital funds to invest in. And then to keep us in Wheaties they would peel off cash 527 

from their management fee and they would pay us a set amount of money and we 528 

would start companies. We had virtually no capital but we got founder’s stock just 529 

for the effort of organizing the company. And then they would invest in the 530 

company’s Series A and so forth. 531 

Jones: Were you happy with that business model? Did that seem like 532 

something sustainable for you over time? 533 

Kinsella: No, because the problem was you were in the thrall of the other venture 534 

partnerships. And you always had to take deals to them; that was what your raison 535 

d'être was. And then there was a maximum limit to how you could grow because 536 

they, in effect, didn't want to keep raising the ante with you because that money, to 537 

avoid the double carry, was coming out of their management fee. 538 

Jones: So they weren't willing to say, "Okay, well, you did great. Let's double up 539 

next year"?  540 

Kinsella: So you were reaching a plateau of gravitas, and you couldn't grow 541 

anything beyond that. And therefore we had to break away and go out and raise a 542 

fund. 543 
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Jones: [Crosstalk] From institutionals, right? 544 

Kinsella: Yes. So we did that. [Off mic conversation] 545 

Kinsella: So then in the fall or spring – I think it was spring of '91 Larry and I 546 

headed to New York.  547 

Jones: Is that before or after V? This is V in the making? 548 

Kinsella: This is V in the making. So we're off, about to raise our first independent 549 

fund. I think we were thinking $50 million or something like that. 550 

Jones: And had Larry done this before? 551 

Kinsella: By himself? No. He had come from Fairfield Venture Partners where 552 

they were a legitimate institutional fund – I can't remember how large they were at 553 

the time. Everything seems small looking back, of course. 554 

Jones: Did you feel like you had a track record? 555 

Kinsella: Yes. I mean relatively speaking. So I remember at one of our first 556 

meetings – it was with Abbott Capital. There was this guy who started this 557 

publication Venture Economics, which is like the tracking service for the venture 558 

capital industry. His name was Stanley Abbott. I think he sold his publication to 559 

Dow Jones. And then he decided that (after he had looked at venture capital through 560 

the frosty pane of glass on the outside) he was qualified to raise a fund and 561 

apparently people thought he was. So he got an institution to fund the fund – I can't 562 

remember the size, it was a lot of capital. 563 

So Larry and I were meeting with one of the associates there, a wet-behind-the-ears 564 

Harvard Business School graduate. He sat there – this was long before laptops or 565 

iPads or anything. He had a long legal yellow pad and he's taking notes about what 566 

we did and what our deal flow was and all that sort of stuff. 567 

So we explained the whole thing to him, how we'd been founding these companies 568 

and working for the man and we wanted to break out. He looks at us and then puts 569 

his pencil down, scratches his head and says, "I just don't understand how you're 570 

going to get deal flow." You idiot. We create the companies ourselves. That's what 571 

we've been doing. And this was just completely orthogonal to the way he was 572 
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thinking. It was like, "Well how are you going to get all of these great deals to show 573 

up in your inbox?" or something. Anyway, we were shaking our heads. 574 

Our next meeting was with the Swiss pharmaceutical company. And at the time it 575 

was known as Sandoz, and later it merged with Ciba-Geigy. 576 

Jones: Novartis –  577 

Kinsella: Yes, it became Novartis. And the Swiss shared an office suite in 578 

Rockefeller Center, where when they were in town to do business they would have 579 

access to administrative services and fax machines and conference rooms, whatever. 580 

So that's where we met. 581 

We were supposed to meet with lower level people – not grunts, but not senior 582 

people at Sandoz. And lo and behold we walk into the room and it's the CEO, Max 583 

Link, and the senior VP of research, Stephan Guttmann, who is an Auschwitz 584 

survivor. I remember it was hot, it was summer, so we were wearing short sleeves, 585 

and you could see the tattoo of his [concentration camp] number on his arm. He’s a 586 

really tough, tough guy.  587 

Anyway, we loved the guy, we really liked him – Max Link was an interesting 588 

character as well. So basically, we made our pitch. And there was another guy named 589 

David Schnell who worked for Max Link. (A little later Schnell became the founding 590 

– well he worked for me, and then he became the founding principal of Prospect 591 

Venture Partners in the Bay Area, along with Alex Barkas, who died. There were four 592 

people, so it's David Schnell and Alex Barkas, both of them used to be at KP until 593 

they came and spun out. Then Russell Hirsch who had been at Mayfield and Jim 594 

Tannenbaum, who had been at Sierra Venture.  [The four of them] started Prospect 595 

Venture Partners. Right out of the chute, [they got a] $100 million commitment from 596 

CalPERS. So their first fund was using that as a launch base, and [they raised] $500 597 

million.) 598 

Anyway – getting too far ahead of the story – so David Schnell was CEO Max Link’s 599 

assistant because he was an MD with an MBA. They listened to our pitch, and they 600 

went outside the room. They said, "Could we consult on our own?" So we waited 601 

there.  602 
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When they came back in, they said, "Well what about this? We don't really want to 603 

be just a limited partner," -- because that's what we were pitching them – "but if you 604 

will agree to just do the type of deals that are specifically therapeutic companies, not 605 

diagnostic, not devices, then we would very much like to consider being your sole 606 

limited partner." Wow, that sounded good because –  607 

Jones: And how had you framed it, how big? What did you decide to do? 608 

Kinsella: What were we going to do? 609 

Jones: Yes. 610 

Kinsella: Well, we were going to raise as much as we could get but we were sort of 611 

targeting $50 million and if it became really successful we could probably get $75 612 

million. And so we had had some initial contacts on the West Coast, then we had 613 

made this trip to New York and we had seen this guy at Abbott Capital to whom we 614 

had explained everything and he didn't get it, and so on.  615 

So then we were thinking, "Geez, we cut a deal with [Sandoz], and we're done. We 616 

can start doing deals, the fundraising is over." And then we had to obviously 617 

negotiate what the terms were. 618 

The standard venture terms are 80/20 after re-payment of capital. You split the 619 

profits 80% to the limited [partner] and 20 to the general partners. And the deal was 620 

that we were able to come up with Novartis [Sandoz] – because it was the deal that 621 

we'd had before. So when these Kleiner Perkins and Sequoia were peeling off money 622 

from their management fee to give us walking around money the deal was we could 623 

keep half of the profits because that really incented us.  They didn't really care 624 

because they were looking for the opportunity to put a lot of money to work. They 625 

weren't that interested in cutting into our share of the founder's side, although it cut 626 

into half of it. 627 

So we got the other half, we established this deal structure where we got a 50 628 

percent carry. We just told Sandoz, "Well that's our historical deal" even though we 629 

were transitioning away from the old model to a new model. And they agreed, so 630 

that was fine because they were not financially motivated; they were motivated to –  631 

Jones: To find technologies. 632 
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Kinsella: Right, molecules and so forth. So they agreed and ended up putting up 633 

$10 million, and I think half of it was to pay salaries and office and travel and so forth 634 

and the other half, $5 million, was for investing in the deal, so $500,000 per deal that 635 

we would start. Okay, still pretty small potatoes.  636 

Shortly after we got started IVP said, "Hey, we'd like to do a side-by-side fund with 637 

you so that you can have another $500,000 per deal. But we don't pay any of the 638 

management overhead; we just put the $500 K in – that was fine with Sandoz. So 639 

now we disposed of a million dollars [per deal] to invest and that was great for us 640 

because at the end of that day what we were trying to do is break out of the scheme 641 

where even though our relative rate of return from our founder’s stock might have 642 

looked great, the absolute rate of return was bupkis compared to the people who had 643 

been able to pump real dollars into [a start-up]. 644 

So that's where we were going and that's what attracted us to the Sandoz [Novartis] 645 

opportunity. And we were off and running. So IVP committed, over time, two funds 646 

each of $3 million to match [the Novartis money]. Therefore we had $10, $3, and $3 or 647 

a total of $16 million riding on the investments we made in the course of Avalon V. 648 

That turned out to be a spectacular partnership. We ended up financing twelve 649 

companies, one of which was an early write-off, so a million dollars went down the 650 

tubes. But every one of the others was a success. We had eight IPOs and three 651 

acquisitions out of the remaining eleven. 652 

It ended up becoming an 11X fund of which we had half the carry. So that was very 653 

nice for me and Larry and John Hendrick, our chief financial officer. Basically we 654 

retired after that. Well, John did go back to work for a bit in Washington doing 655 

something different. But that was only for five years and then he came back and now 656 

he's been retired for 15 years, although he keeps an office with us because he likes 657 

hanging with the old guys. 658 

Larry Bock tried a stint with another venture capital fund but he’s just a very clever 659 

guy. He’s not the type of guy who likes to sit around in partner meetings and put up 660 

with all this political bullshit stuff. He actually had joined Channing-Weinberg 661 

Associates – well, the partner who brought him in ended in up dying. And the other 662 

two partners were quite odd.  So Larry spun out of there and then just did some 663 

deals on his own primarily because of the [financial stability from the] ultimate 664 

liquidations from Avalon V. 665 
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[Larry] had a big score with a company called Caliper, which is an Avalon V 666 

company. And he's been doing a lot of eleemosynary stuff. And then Larry had – 667 

probably since the beginning of Avalon V—his Stargardt's disease [to deal with], 668 

which is basically an early onset form of macular degeneration, it's genetic, so that 669 

affected him and over time his vision became much more difficult. Now he doesn't 670 

drive; he has a Seeing Eye dog. He had a Kurzweil reading machine, so he could put 671 

down a copy of Science on it and it would scan and read the thing – obviously in that 672 

funny artificial computer voice, which would drive me crazy, but you know, it's 673 

gotten better. So that's how Larry would stay in touch technically with things. 674 

And I think he's got some massive [Macintosh] screen – so I sent an email – I guess 675 

when it’s that high, you can read it and respond to it; I just exchanged email with 676 

him today about getting together. 677 

Larry's been sort of fine, raising his daughters, both of whom are now out of college. 678 

He has pursued a number of things, including the Science & Engineering Festival in 679 

Washington, which is biennial –  680 

Jones: We just did a thing for that with Larry. We got Francis Collins to show 681 

up and talk genomics, personalized medicine. 682 

Kinsella: By himself or with Craig Venter? 683 

Jones: Well it was Francis Collins, there were four people on the panel, not 684 

Venter. 685 

Kinsella: All right, so you’ve already dealt with Larry, that's fine. So we all had 686 

gone off.  I was retired for two weeks and was driven stir crazy so I started to make 687 

individual investments. 688 

Jones: Let me ask you – this fund I have nine out of ten are successful –  689 

Kinsella: Twelve out of thirteen. 690 

Jones: So it's phenomenal. Do you know of anybody who's had a fund like that? 691 

Kinsella:  Well you know who did very well? And I don't know exactly what his 692 

stats are—it’s Biovest, which Tim Wollaeger did with Ted Greene. 693 

Jones: And it was much smaller and they just did one. 694 
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Kinsella: No, they did a bunch of companies. 695 

Jones: They did a bunch of companies, but they –  696 

Kinsella: Oh, they just did one fund. 697 

Jones: And it wasn't – well I don't know how big it was. I forget.  698 

Kinsella: I think it was $5 million. Well the biggest win was Amylin. But they had 699 

some other ones too that were not mean returns at all. But Ted is very difficult. He 700 

and Tim, even though they worked in harness at Hybritech, you know, Ted CEO and 701 

Tim was the CFO, they just had too many clashes. Anyway, they did well. But of 702 

course a lot of this stuff was a function of the time. If the band got back together–my 703 

band of me, Larry, and John Hendrick—if we came back together again, would we be 704 

able to do it again? I doubt it. I think times have changed and you have to adapt your 705 

investment model to that. 706 

So I started making individual investments around 2000 and then by 2001, late in 707 

2000 I met Steve Tomlin, who is one of the partners here. And we would turn up at 708 

the same angel pitches in town and we often, if not always, had the same reaction to 709 

them: it was either “nah” or, "Well this is halfway interesting but combining 710 

technical and market risks in the same deal isn't what we do. You need to wring one 711 

of those risks out of it and then come back." Or, "Hey, this is interesting. Let's take a 712 

harder look and maybe invest in it." 713 

So we were having the same reaction to these pitches. Then we got to talking one 714 

day and he was as frustrated by the investment by Rolodex system as I was and so we 715 

decided to throw in together to raise the next fund. And we did that. It was a very 716 

difficult time because –  717 

Jones: This is early 2000s? 718 

Kinsella: Yes, so we were very much affected by 9/11.  People just slammed their 719 

pocketbooks shut at that time. We did have a fund – we raised $20 million and then 720 

in order to have enough capital to spread on a risk-adjusted basis, enough 721 

companies, we each pledged $2.5 million for a total of $5 million and Andy Viterbi, 722 

the co-founder of Qualcomm, threw in a million.  That was a $6 million side-by-side 723 

fund that was matched with the $20 million, so we had in effect $26 million to invest. 724 
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That did reasonably well, and then we raised Avalon VII, VIII, IX, X, and we are just 725 

finishing the investment period of X now. And we expanded the partnership about 726 

five years ago to include Rich Levandov and Brady Bohrmann who had come out of 727 

Masthead Venture Partners in Boston. They had performed spectacularly. So it's 728 

been a great partnership, and we’re a partners-only fund; we don't have associates or 729 

principals or vice presidents or all the bureaucratic nightmare. We all have enough 730 

mutual respect for one another that any of us could say, "You know, I want to do this 731 

deal," and educate the others on what it is, with a few questions asked. 732 

And we're off and running – it's not, "Well, we've got to go through the tab 733 

separated, due diligence binder or all that sort of thing." We have to have a 734 

committee and so Rich Levandov once said, “You know the way we do investing, due 735 

diligence is what you do when you don't want to do a deal.” [Laughs]. Which is really 736 

great. Anyway, I'm sort of wandering off the story a little bit. 737 

Jones: I would like to ask you about specific companies along the way. You've 738 

been involved in a lot of interesting projects and I'd like to hear about how they 739 

came together and what you saw in them. One, prior to Avalon V, Vertex is before 740 

that, right? 741 

Kinsella: Vertex was Avalon III. 742 

Jones: That turned out to be a big thing and there were a lot of big names 743 

associated with that, right? There's Benno Schmidt and William Paley on the board. 744 

Do I have that right?  745 

Kinsella: Paley was never – I don't think he was on the board. Benno Schmidt was 746 

chairman of the board. 747 

Jones: And then Josh Boger – how did he come to you? 748 

Kinsella: This is a sore point with me because Boger, for 25 years, has tried to 749 

obfuscate the fact that he was not the sole founder of the company. In fact he wasn't 750 

really even a founder at all. I recruited him out of Merck to come to the company. 751 

Now he was there early enough that I don't mind him referring to himself as a 752 

founder. I mean, that's kind of loosely interpreted. But by taking every opportunity 753 

to exclude me – notwithstanding the fact that I'm in The Billion Dollar Molecule 754 

referenced 14 times as the business founder and yet – we had to go into Wikipedia 755 
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and change the listing – that [Boger] had put in there – to include my name and so 756 

forth. And it's very [damn] irritating, I tell you. 757 

Jones: Did you talk to Barry for that book? 758 

Kinsella: Yes, I spent a lot of time with Barry. But I did not talk to him about the 759 

subsequent book that just came out, which doesn't really deal with the founding of 760 

the company. I even looked in the index to see if my name was in there and it's not. 761 

Fair enough, because it's about the later stages of Vertex, if you will. 762 

 763 

But it's interesting. I've got to write the Wall Street Journal writer who interviewed 764 

me a couple of weeks ago, maybe it was last week. Boger, of course, is referred to as 765 

the founder of Vertex and I'm going to write her and say, "Well actually he's the co-766 

founder of Vertex, and this is why." 767 

Anyway, so I had heard of Boger – he was a Senior Director of Medicinal Chemistry 768 

at the [Merck] Facility in [Rahway, NJ]. I remember taking the Path train from 769 

Manhattan to meet him. He drove his car to whatever the station was near Rahway, 770 

or in Rahway itself, picked me up, and we went to lunch at TGIF or something. So 771 

then I pitched him this rational drug design deal. 772 

Jones: So were there other rational drug design companies started at that time? 773 

Kinsella: A little vortex forms around ideas that are concepts that you read about 774 

in Nature or Science or PNAS or Cell -- something like that. So it sounded right. The 775 

key to rational drug design was structure, so x-ray crystallography, and that had 776 

made some seriously important advances at that period of time. So again, prepped 777 

by technological innovation it becomes obvious to do because you have the tools 778 

that permit you to do it cheaper and faster than it could otherwise have been done. 779 

And that creates the opportunity. All technology is like that, right? 780 

So that was the rational drug design gig, and we put together an advisory board that 781 

included Stuart Schreiber who, you know, Boger got into a pissing contest with him 782 

later.  783 

Jones: He was on the scientific advisory board?  784 

Kinsella: He was on the original scientific advisory board, along with Jeremy 785 

Knowles and Martin Karplus and a guy – he’s the x-ray crystallographer who either 786 
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committed suicide or got blown off a bridge in Memphis, Tennessee when he sat in 787 

on a meeting? – I'll think of it – Don – his first name was Don [Wiley] – I'll think of it 788 

in a minute. But anyway—the key group of arguably the best [technologists] 789 

involved in all of the aspects that are important for a “rational drug design” 790 

company. 791 

Jones: And is that something you're trying to do, any company you're going to 792 

get the best people is that –? 793 

Kinsella: No, we try to get the worst people. [Laughs]. 794 

Jones: No, do you have to have all the best people before you go forward with 795 

it? 796 

Kinsella: I like to do that. But it's different now. Let me just finish this story and 797 

then I'll address the best people in forming a new company and all that. 798 

So the first name that we were going to call the company was Veritas 799 

Pharmaceuticals, you know, kind of because all of the original SAB were on the 800 

Harvard faculty. Jeremy Knowles, who was the dean of science, was appalled. He was 801 

British and you know, [speaking in heavy British accent], "That we would presume to 802 

adopt the motto of Harvard as the name of this company." He just thought that was 803 

just unacceptable. So we had to leave that. 804 

Boger's favorite – looking at Greek mythology – was to name the company Minerva. 805 

What are you fucking kidding me? Anyway, I'm the one who decided that it should 806 

be Vertex, right—pinnacle. It also begins with a V, and starts with the same three 807 

letters as Veritas does. "Minerva" – ick. 808 

Anyway, back to the other thing. I did Onyx in exactly the same way, with Frank 809 

McCormick back in '92. Onyx Pharmaceuticals got the best cancer SAB possible, put 810 

that together with Frank, whom they all loved. 811 

Jones: And Cetus had been acquired, right? Did he go back to UCSF before…? 812 

Kinsella: No, no, no, no. Chiron acquired Cetus. The entire oncology group of 813 

Cetus then became part of Chiron, in Emeryville. And Frank was the head of that 814 

group at Cetus and continued at Chiron under Bill Rutter. And I had been talking to 815 
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Frank for several years about doing a startup – because he had been referred to me 816 

as being a very smart guy and looking to do something entrepreneurial and all that. 817 

He told me about PCR originally. So we tried to license that out of Cetus in the early 818 

stages, before they really knew the power of it. 819 

Jones: Who tried to license it? 820 

Kinsella: Frank and I approached them that we would start a company and we 821 

would license the PCR technology.  We had several bites at the apple and that didn't 822 

work. And the reason he knew about it because he was buddies with – who was the 823 

guy who won the Nobel Prize? 824 

Jones: Mullis? 825 

Kinsella: Yes, Kary Mullis, right. So he knew Kary and had great stories about him. 826 

They were almost two peas in a pod. They were offbeat guys and –  827 

Jones: Frank is too? 828 

Kinsella: Yes, not as much as Kary.  Frank is a serious scientist. I don't think Kary 829 

is a serious scientist. He just came up with this brilliant idea –  830 

Jones: He had a good idea, right. 831 

Kinsella: – so there you go. And in fact Kary was driving from San Francisco to the 832 

Mendocino area with his girlfriend and they were talking. I guess she was a 833 

researcher at UCSF too. Frank was familiar with this and talked to Kary about it. 834 

Then he was telling me about it. So we try to approach Cetus. 835 

And they just couldn't make a decision, didn't know what to do or whatever. 836 

Anyway, it just led nowhere. That was act one of Frank and me. So that didn't work. 837 

But we stayed in touch and I'd see him when I'd go up to the Bay Area and socialize. 838 

We liked to go to Stars – do you remember that restaurant? 839 

Jones: No. 840 
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Kinsella: No? The chef was one of the first celebrity chefs. It's long since gone out 841 

of business. But anyway, we liked to go there. It was hot; it was difficult to get in. 842 

That was our dinner place.  843 

Finally we came up with this idea because there'd been some significant advances in 844 

molecular oncology. And everyone knew Frank, and so we set about to establish the 845 

company.  So we're all ready to go and Frank had already informally talked to his 846 

group [at Cetus]. They'd heard about it and they had approached him. Thirteen of 847 

the people in his molecular oncology group wanted to go with him, and we stitched 848 

a deal together.  849 

Finally at a breakfast at the Claremont Resort that Sam Colella – I invited Sam from 850 

IVP into the deal. He came over and he went with me, met with Frank and me over 851 

breakfast there one day. And we solidified, and finalized the deal. Then Frank goes 852 

back and he writes a letter of resignation to Rutter, and Rutter wouldn't accept it. He 853 

wouldn't respond to it. It was crazy.  In effect we were about to decapitate the entire 854 

molecular oncology group.  855 

Jones: Who had the IP? 856 

Kinsella: Well no one had – there wasn't any IP. 857 

Jones: There wasn't? 858 

Kinsella: No. We would just pursue oncological targets with the novel 859 

technologies and there was no particular target that we were going to go after. Frank 860 

came up with this very clever idea of invading tumor cells with an adenovirus so that 861 

when the adenovirus started to grow it would explode the tumor cells. I can't 862 

remember but there's a very clever mechanism, how it selectively went in tumor cells 863 

but not into normal cells. Anyway, we're trying to get the company started and 864 

Rutter is beside himself. He's recently acquired this company – I think he acquired 865 

Cetus –  866 

Jones: – for the cancer group. 867 

Kinsella: – for the cancer group and they were about [laughing]. 868 

Jones: They let PCR go. 869 
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Kinsella: That's right, whether they sold it to DuPont and then DuPont turned 870 

around and sold it to Roche, I can't remember what happened to it. 871 

I was a key person on the negotiating team to give Rutter a face-saving way to paper 872 

over this defection of the entire fourteen people in molecular oncology. So it was 873 

fine. 874 

We let Rutter, the PR people from Chiron actually make the announcement of the 875 

formation of this company, and by that time we had gotten Brook Byers of KP 876 

involved and I think Jim Blair of Domain and maybe Tony Evnin at that time as well. 877 

I can't remember.  878 

Finally we started back and forth negotiation with Rutter on a few issues and I got a 879 

few last-minute concessions and then we were good to go. And then it gets 880 

announced and picked up by the New York Times and they reported it like it was 881 

Rutter’s idea [laughs]. 882 

Jones: Did they buy into it at all, the company? Chiron, Bill Rutter, did he –? 883 

Kinsella: Yes, they put Hollings Renton on the board, or he was an observer or 884 

something –then later he became CEO and the company did very well under his 885 

leadership. But did he buy in? What kind of rights did they have? I don't think they 886 

had any specific rights but they were all plugged into what we were doing. 887 

In terms of partnerships, the first partnership was with Bayer, out of their 888 

Connecticut office. And it was actually George Scangos, who may have founded 889 

Exelixis? 890 

Jones: Yes, I think he was CEO there at one time. I don't know if he founded it 891 

or not. 892 

Kinsella: I don't remember either. Anyway. 893 

Jones: That was Papadopoulos, right? 894 

Kinsella: Costas. 895 

Jones: Stelios. 896 
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Kinsella: I mean Stelios, right. So many Greek names. Stelios, right. Yeah, Stelios – 897 

you know, we ought to bring the whole gang back together because I had fun with 898 

these guys. We would do some great things. I don't know, Stelios used to have some 899 

big sort of conclave in the summer, and you know, like on a Greek island or 900 

something like that where everyone would come in, they'd all [have a great time]. I 901 

don't know if he's still doing that anymore. 902 

Jones: I don't know. 903 

Kinsella: I probably ought to look him up because I enjoyed him. He was a real 904 

personality. And he loved to do things with other Greeks, like Scangos and 905 

[Kleanthis Xanthopoulos here in San Diego]. 906 

Jones: It's not coming to me. I don't know. 907 

Kinsella: He started some company that was involved in toll-like receptors in cell 908 

signaling pathways – Larry Fritz ended up being recruited in to replace him as CEO 909 

for some stint. Anyway. Just old times. So that's the story of Onyx, and Chiron never 910 

really did anything that I can recall specifically [in oncology] because by that time 911 

they had gotten hold of the Hep B vaccine and that was a big deal for them. And 912 

then they did the –  913 

Jones: Hep C too. 914 

Kinsella: – [crosstalk] yeah, non-A, non-B or C – so they did that one. So their 915 

focus became a bit off of oncology. So they never did the deal. 916 

But then the company [Onyx] did well and it started to develop its own products and 917 

so I think Onyx probably has three or four products of its own on the market today. 918 

But Amgen acquired it, right? 919 

Jones: Yes, recently. 920 

Kinsella: Recently, so it's owned by Amgen. Anyway, that was fun. 921 

Jones: How long were you in with Vertex? You were on the board, weren't you? 922 

Kinsella: I was on the board through it going public, and I typically got off boards 923 

after that. There's no point – you're not creating more value for your limited partners 924 

that way. 925 
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Jones: Other companies of note prior to Avalon V? 926 

Kinsella: Of note? 927 

Jones: Biotech companies? 928 

Kinsella: Oh, biotech –  929 

Jones: Or you had a lot of big tech successes? 930 

Kinsella: Oh yes. Landmark Graphics Corporation is a great success, went public, 931 

and was acquired by Halliburton. And let's see, GenPharm, that was –  932 

Jones: Tell me about that one. 933 

Kinsella: Well, that again was rounding up the top people in the field, including 934 

Mario Capecchi, who later won a Nobel Prize for transgenic animals, basically.  935 

Jones: That was the plan from the beginning, right? 936 

Kinsella: That was the plan from the beginning. Jonathan McQuitty, who was at 937 

that subsidiary of Gen –  938 

Jones: Oh, Genencor, he was there. 939 

Kinsella: Genencor, that's right. He had good executive experience and then he 940 

got interested in this. Mario Rosati got involved with putting things together. He 941 

was at Wilson Sonsini. It's nice having these checks. Mario's got a vineyard property 942 

and I need to look him up when I’m back up to the vineyard and stuff like that. 943 

We had already filed our red herring and we were about to go public when Steve 944 

Sherwin sued us and it was a bogus lawsuit. He ended up –  945 

Jones: This is the "Mouse Wars" right? 946 

Kinsella: Yes, Mouse Wars. He ended up having to pay us $50 million. But by then 947 

the IPO was gone and all that sort of stuff. The company ended up being acquired by 948 

Medarex, and my stock ended up becoming Medarex stock and Medarex hit the 949 

skids as a stock. You know it fell to four bucks or something. Then this venture fund, 950 

Fred Craves' venture fund – and he was involved with Steve Burrill and –  951 
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Jones: Bay City.  Was that Bay City? 952 

Kinsella: It was prior to Bay City I think. So they made an offer to all of the former 953 

GenPharm shareholders who by then had Medarex stock to buy their stock. I 954 

remember it was like they were offered to buy it at four bucks a share, and I figured 955 

like four bucks a share is not even worth – why sell when you just hold on and if 956 

something happens it happens; if it doesn't, you know, I've taken a roll of the dice. 957 

Then I don’t know how many, maybe it was two years later, that the biotech market 958 

just got screaming red hot after the tech market had started to cool off. And this is a 959 

one-time—I absolutely timed the exit perfectly. The former $4 stock had soared to 960 

$117 a share, and my feeling was there's utterly no rational reason why this stock is so 961 

high – so I sold every share at $117 and then it headed down after that and never 962 

recovered, right? So that was a good trade. 963 

I was originally really despairing of what Sherwin had done. He had come out of 964 

Genentech, and started Cell Genesys. And they were in the Mouse Wars too and so 965 

then he sued GenPharm on this bogus thing and ended up having to pay the 966 

company, after a lot of wasted legal fees, as you can imagine. Anyway, I’m not a big 967 

fan of Steve Sherwin.  968 

But it all worked out in the end because I got a fabulous price for it, maybe much 969 

better than if it had gone public itself. 970 

Jones: And the technology was good, right? 971 

Kinsella: Yes, the technology was great. And still – well I'm sure the patents have 972 

expired by now because this was a long time ago.  This was prior to Vertex. 973 

Jones: This is '90, or prior –  974 

Kinsella: GenPharm was '88, one year prior. Vertex was '89.  So that was that. I 975 

started a tech company in '86 called Synaptics that developed the original touch 976 

screen for the iPhone and they controlled virtually 60 percent of the market in the 977 

touch pads. So that worked out very nicely. I'd started the company with a brain 978 

researcher by the name of Gary Lynch at UC Irvine. He had developed some 979 

interesting technologies and deciphered from the algorithms from a rat brain that 980 

had to do with pattern recognition and LTP, long-term potentiation. Apparently 981 

Mitsubishi had gotten wind of this and wanted to do a deal with him and then I 982 
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think he had gotten funding from the Office of Naval Research and they decided well 983 

no, they didn't want Mitsubishi to have this [laughter] technology. So they did a 984 

more expanded deal with him. But we had the blessing of the ONR because we were 985 

an American company. And this was another of one of these things, so we started 986 

the company and we recruited Federico Faggin and Carver Mead into the company. 987 

But it wasn't their idea, but of course you read the literature now that they claim 988 

they started it and all [laughing]. Anyway, that was another Wikipedia we had to 989 

correct – you know, the truth squad. 990 

I don't want to take credit for what they did and their contribution they made and so 991 

forth.  I'm not going to say that I did it all.  Maybe I fathered a child and I left town, 992 

whatever. But I'm still the father. I don't lose my identity. I don't want any role larger 993 

than I have had, but I did have that role, guys, so fess up.  994 

I don't know, thinking of other companies. How are we doing on your two hours' 995 

time? 996 

Jones: Well we're coming up to the end. There's probably – maybe could we do 997 

this again sometime and maybe talk more about some of these companies? 998 

Kinsella: Sure. 999 

Jones: Why don't we break here and then come back another time? 1000 

Kinsella: That'd be fine. Let me just answer this.  We could go another ten 1001 

minutes or so if you wanted to. 1002 

Jones: Okay.  1003 

Kinsella: All right. 1004 

Jones: Well I guess in Avalon V – well how did that come together? You've got 1005 

this mandate, these have to be –  1006 

Kinsella: The Sandoz companies? 1007 

Jones: Yes. 1008 

Kinsella: We would have quarterly meetings that rotated among the various 1009 

research sites of Sandoz. Let's see, we always had the December meeting in La Jolla 1010 
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because we played the weather. So December was here. March was in Switzerland, 1011 

and then all of us loved to go to Interlaken, to Wengen, to go skiing after the March 1012 

meeting. We try to have this later in March so it's still, you know, winter—still a lot 1013 

of snow but the days are getting longer, etc. 1014 

The June meeting was always at the Vienna research facility and that was a nice time 1015 

to be in Austria. And the September meeting was in the East Hanover, New Jersey 1016 

campus of Sandoz. Then back to La Jolla. The partnership lasted – well, it was 1017 

originally done for ten years but with the first company that went public, Sequana, I 1018 

paid back the entire nut to – it was by then Novartis. And then everything was gravy 1019 

after that because once you paid the nut back, then all we had to do was just divide 1020 

the stock in half because they had gotten paid out and they just got a half of 1021 

everything and the general partners got half of everything according to our shares. 1022 

We were just liquidating the companies after that over a period of three or four 1023 

years. 1024 

Jones: I'd like to hear about the companies.  1025 

Kinsella: The companies – let's see if I can rattle off the list of them: Sequana, 1026 

Pharmacopeia, Microside, Idun – I was thinking of the location of them – Onyx was 1027 

one of them – so three to go – Argonaut, so two to go – do you know what they are? 1028 

Jones: I've got a list of companies but I don't have them by funds, so I don't 1029 

know –ARIAD, was that one? 1030 

Kinsella: ARIAD was in Avalon IV. 1031 

Jones: Okay. Athena, that was too late, right? 1032 

Kinsella: No, Athena was in Avalon II.  That was a long time ago. That was a '84, 1033 

or '85 company. 1034 

Jones: Caliper was one? 1035 

Kinsella: Caliper is one. 1036 

Jones: What did they do? 1037 

Kinsella: Caliper was in microfluidics. 1038 
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Jones: I thought Sandoz didn't want any diagnostics or anything. 1039 

Kinsella: They didn't – so how did it slip through the crack? I think we had to get 1040 

special permission for that because the technology was so clever – it was like a lab on 1041 

a chip kind of thing. And so Novartis signed off on it. 1042 

We did another company that was backed – because we didn't have the same 1043 

restrictions for IVP. The fund we did with them, which was side-by-side was called 1044 

Avalon BioVentures I. When that was used up, it was like $3 million each, they just 1045 

renewed it so then it was Avalon BioVentures II for another $3 million. So 10, 3, and 1046 

3—the entire amount of the corpus of investable funds for Avalon V was $16 million. 1047 

And there was a company called River Medical, which ended up becoming involved 1048 

in the leveraged buyout of IVAC out of Lilly and then remerging it with IMED 1049 

Corporation here. Greg Sancoff, was the CEO of that company, and he just did a 1050 

great job. He's now the CEO of this stealth mode company that Avalon IX is an 1051 

investor in, which is doing great.  1052 

[River Medical] was, I think, the company that had the highest ROI per board 1053 

meeting I'd ever been involved in. The company got turned around from inception 1054 

to the final liquidation through the final merger between IVAC and IMED. We made 1055 

10X on that and I only had to go to four board meetings. Fantastic. So 2-1/2X per 1056 

board meeting. We’ve had better than 10X returns before but I don't think we've ever 1057 

had better than 2.5 ROI per board meeting; that was pretty spectacular. And that 1058 

was outside of the Novartis deal because that was not pharmaceutical. As you 1059 

pointed out, neither is Caliper but there was some reason why. Ask Larry because 1060 

Caliper was his deal, and when you see him tomorrow say we were talking about it 1061 

and I couldn't remember how it got outside the restriction of all these 1062 

pharmaceuticals. 1063 

That leaves one, I think. I think we've named seven. Oh, Neurocrine. 1064 

Jones: Neurocrine?  That's here in San Diego. 1065 

Kinsella: Right. That's the eight. And then we had – let's see, the write-off was 1066 

Allopex. There were three acquisitions and what the hell were they? I don't know, 1067 

one of them was – they were all pretty small but nicely profitable compared to the 1068 

capital we invested in them. One, was with this guy named Steve Perucca, a mad 1069 
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biomedical scientist guy, you know, idea a minute, talks a mile a minute. I remember 1070 

he always carried this briefcase around in the days before MacBook Airs, right? So 1071 

Glaxo acquired that company, and it was some neuro technology and I don't even 1072 

remember what it was. And Steve came out of Genentech. But that was one of their 1073 

acquisitions. And then there were two more fairly small ones but I don't remember 1074 

what they were.  The real winners were the IPOs. 1075 

Jones: Well, we're up to six o'clock. 1076 

Kinsella: Okay, that sounds good. All right. 1077 

Jones: All right. Very good. Thank you1078 
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